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Board Policy 
Sexual Harassment 
 
BP 4119.11  
Personnel 
 
 
The Board of Education prohibits sexual harassment of district employees and job applicants.  
The Board also prohibits retaliatory behavior or action against district employees or other 
persons who complain, testify or otherwise participate in the complaint process established 
pursuant to this policy and administrative regulation. (cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall take all actions necessary to ensure the prevention, 
investigation, and correction of sexual harassment, including but not limited to: 
 
1. Providing training to employees in accordance with law and administrative regulation 
 
2. Publicizing and disseminating the district's sexual harassment policy to staff             
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 
 
3. Ensuring prompt, thorough, and fair investigation of complaints 
 
4. Taking timely and appropriate corrective/remedial action(s), which may require interim 
separation of the complainant and the alleged harasser and subsequent monitoring of 
developments 
 
All complaints and allegations of sexual harassment shall be kept confidential to the extent 
necessary to carry out the investigation or to take other subsequent necessary actions.  (5 CCR 
4964) 
 
Any district employee or job applicant who feels that he/she has been sexually harassed or who 
has knowledge of any incident of sexual harassment by or against another employee, a job 
applicant or a student, shall immediately report the incident to his/her supervisor, the principal, 
district administrator or Superintendent. 
 
A supervisor, principal or other district administrator who receives a harassment complaint shall 
promptly notify the Superintendent or designee. 
 
Complaints of sexual harassment shall be filed in accordance with AR 4031 - Complaints 
Concerning Discrimination in Employment. An employee may bypass his/her supervisor in filing 
a complaint where the supervisor is the subject of the complaint. (cf. 4031 - Complaints Concerning 
Discrimination in Employment) 
 
Any district employee who engages or participates in sexual harassment or who aids, abets, 
incites, compels, or coerces another to commit sexual harassment against a district employee, job 
applicant, or student is in violation of this policy and is subject to disciplinary action, up to and 
including dismissal. 
 
(cf. 4117.4 - Dismissal) 
(cf. 4118 - Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
 







 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination on the basis of sex 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act, especially: 
12940  Prohibited discrimination 
12950.1 Sexual harassment training 
LABOR CODE 
1101  Political activities of employees 
1102.1  Discrimination:  sexual orientation 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 
7287.8 Retaliation 
7288.0  Sexual harassment training and education 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs receiving state financial assistance 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
2000d-2000d-7  Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964 
2000e-2000e-17  Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended 
2000h-2-2000h-6  Title IX, 1972 Education Act Amendments 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
106.9  Dissemination of policy 
COURT DECISIONS 
Department of Health Services v. Superior Court of California, (2003) 31 Cal.4th 1026 
Faragher v. City of Boca Raton, (1998) 118 S.Ct. 2275 
Burlington Industries v. Ellreth, (1998) 118 S.Ct. 2257 
Gebser v. Lago Vista Independent School District, (1998) 118 S.Ct. 1989 
Oncale v. Sundowner Offshore Serv. Inc., (1998) 118 S.Ct. 998 
Meritor Savings Bank, FSB v. Vinson et al., (1986) 447 U.S. 57 
 
Management Resources: 
OFFICE OF CIVIL RIGHTS AND NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF ATTORNEYS GENERAL 
Protecting Students from Harassment and Hate Crime, January, 1999 
WEB SITES 
California Department of Fair Employment and Housing:  http://www.dfeh.ca.gov 
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission:  http://www.eeoc.gov 
U.S. Department of Education, Office of Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/offices/OCR 
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Board Policy 
Tobacco-Free Schools 
 
BP 3513.3  
Business and Noninstructional Operations 
 
 
The Board of Education recognizes the health hazards associated with smoking and the use of 
tobacco products, including the breathing of second-hand smoke, and desires to provide a 
healthy environment for students and staff. 
 
(cf. 4159/4259/4359 - Employee Assistance Programs) 
(cf. 5131.62 - Tobacco) 
(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education) 
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 
 
The Board prohibits the use of tobacco products at any time in district-owned or leased 
buildings, on district property and in district vehicles.  (Health and Safety Code 104420; Labor 
Code 6404.5; 20 USC 6083) 
 
This prohibition applies to all employees, students and visitors at any instructional program, 
activity or athletic event. 
 
Smoking or use of any tobacco-related products and disposal of any tobacco-related waste are 
prohibited within 25 feet of any playground, except on a public sidewalk located within 25 feet 
of the playground.  (Health and Safety Code 104495) 
 
 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
48900  Grounds for suspension/expulsion 
48901  Prohibition against tobacco use by students 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 
39002  Control of air pollution from nonvehicular sources 
104350-104495  Tobacco use prevention, especially: 
104495  Prohibition of smoking and tobacco waste on playgrounds 
LABOR CODE 
6404.5  Occupational safety and health: use of tobacco products 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
6083  Nonsmoking policy for children's services 
7111-7117 Safe and Drug Free Schools and Communities Act 
PERB RULINGS 
Eureka Teachers Assn v. Eureka City School District (1992) PERB Order #955 (16 PERC 23168) 
CSEA #506 and Associated Teachers of Metropolitan Riverside v. Riverside Unified School District (1989) PERB Order #750 (13 PERC 20147) 
 
Management Resources: 
WEB SITES 
CDE:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 
California Department of Health Services:  http://www.dhs.ca.gov 
Occupational Safety and Health Standards Board:  http://www.dir.ca.gov/OSHSB/oshsb.html 
Environmental Protection Agency:  http://www.epa.gov 
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Board Policy 
Employee Use Of Technology 
 
BP 4040  
Personnel 
 
 
The Board of Education recognizes that technological resources can enhance employee 
performance by improving access to and exchange of information, offering effective tools to 
assist in providing a quality instructional program, and facilitating district and school operations. 
The Board expects all employees to learn to use the available technological resources that will 
assist them in the performance of their job responsibilities. As needed, employees shall receive 
training in the appropriate use of these resources. 
 
(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan) 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 
(cf. 4032 - Reasonable Accommodation) 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 6162.7 - Use of Technology in Instruction) 
(cf. 6163.4 - Student Use of Technology) 
 
Employees shall be responsible for the appropriate use of technology and shall use the district's 
technological resources only for purposes related to their employment. Such use is a privilege 
which may be revoked at any time. 
 
(cf. 4119.25/4219.25/4319.25 - Political Activities of Employees) 
 
Employees should be aware that computer files and communications over electronic networks, 
including e-mail and voice mail, are not private. These technologies shall not be used to transmit 
confidential information about students, employees or district operations without authority. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all district computers with Internet access have 
a technology protection measure that prevents access to visual depictions that are obscene or 
child pornography, and that the operation of such measures is enforced.  The Superintendent or 
designee may disable the technology protection measure during use by an adult to enable access 
for bona fide research or other lawful purpose.  (20 USC 6777; 47 USC 254) 
 
To ensure proper use of the system, the Superintendent or designee may monitor the district's 
technological resources, including e-mail and voice mail systems, at any time without advance 
notice or consent. If passwords are used, they must be known to the Superintendent or designee 
so that he/she may have system access. 
 







The Superintendent or designee shall establish administrative regulations which outline 
employee obligations and responsibilities related to the use of district technology.  He/she also 
may establish guidelines and limits on the use of technological resources. Inappropriate use shall 
result in a cancellation of the employee's user privileges, disciplinary action and/or legal action 
in accordance with law, Board policy and administrative regulations. 
 
(cf. 4118 - Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide copies of related policies, regulations and 
guidelines to all employees who use the district's technological resources. Employees shall be 
asked to acknowledge in writing that they have read and understood these policies, regulations 
and guidelines. 
 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 
 
In the event that the use of an electronic resource affects the working conditions of one or more 
employees, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the employees' exclusive representative. 
 
(cf. 4143/4243 - Negotiations/Consultation) 
 
 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
51870-51874  Education technology 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
3543.1  Rights of employee organizations 
PENAL CODE 
502 Computer crimes, remedies 
632  Eavesdropping on or recording confidential communications 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 47 
254 Universal service discounts (E-rate) 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 47 
54.520 Internet safety policy and technology protection measures, E-rate discounts 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
6751-6777 Education Through Technology Act, No Child Left Behind Act, Title II, Part D 
6777  Internet Safety 
 
Management Resources: 
CDE PUBLICATIONS 
K-12 Network Technology Planning Guide: Building the Future, 1994 
CDE PROGRAM ADVISORIES 
1223.94  Acceptable Use of Electronic Information Resources 
WEB SITES 
CDE: http://www.cde.ca.gov 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 







Federal Communications Commission: http://www.fcc.gov 
U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov 
American Library Association:  http://www.ala.org 
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Board Policy 
Work-Related Injuries 
 
BP 4157.1  
Personnel 
 
 
The Board of Education desires to provide its employees with insurance and workers' 
compensation benefits in accordance with law.  The Superintendent or designee shall develop 
an efficient claims handling process in order to reduce costs and facilitate employee recovery. 
 
(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District) 
(cf. 4032 - Reasonable Accommodation) 
(cf. 4113.4/4213.4/4313.4 - Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment) 
(cf. 4154/4254/4354 - Health and Welfare Benefits) 
(cf. 4157/4257/4357 - Employee Safety) 
(cf. 4157.2/4257.2/4357.2 - Ergonomics) 
(cf. 4161.11/4361.11 - Industrial Accident/Illness Leave) 
(cf. 4261.11 - Industrial Accident/Illness Leave) 
 
An employee shall report any work-related injury or illness to his/her supervisor as soon as 
practicable. Upon learning of an injury, a supervisor shall promptly report the incident to the 
Superintendent or designee and the insurance carrier as appropriate. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that every new employee is notified of his/her right 
to receive workers' compensation if injured at work and that injured employees are given notice 
of rights in accordance with law. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that notifications regarding workers' compensation 
are posted in accordance with law. 
 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
44984  Industrial accident and illness leaves, certificated employees 
45192  Industrial accident and illness leaves, classified employees 
LABOR CODE 
3200-4855  Workers' compensation, especially: 
3550-3553 Employee notice 
3600-3605  Conditions of liability 
3760  Report of injury to insurer 
4600  Provision of medical and hospital treatment by employer 
4906  Disclosures and statements 
5400-5413 Notice of injury or death 
6409.1  Reports 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 8 
15596 Notice of employee rights 
 
Management Resources: 
WEB SITES 
California Department of Industrial Relations:  http://www.dir.ca.gov 
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Administrative Regulation 
Exposure Control Plan For Bloodborne Pathogens 
 
AR 4119.42  
Personnel 
 
 
Definitions 
 
Occupational exposure means reasonably anticipated skin, eye, mucous membrane, or parenteral 
contact with blood or other potentially infectious materials that may result from the performance 
of an employee's duties.  (8 CCR 5193(b)) 
 
Exposure incident means a specific eye, mouth, other mucous membrane, nonintact skin, or 
parenteral contact with blood or other potentially infectious materials that result from the 
performance of an employee's duties.  (8 CCR 5193 (b)) 
 
Parenteral contact means piercing mucous membranes or the skin barrier through such events as 
needlesticks, human bites, cuts, and abrasions.  (8 CCR 5193(b)) 
 
A sharp is any object that can be reasonably anticipated to penetrate the skin or any other part of 
the body and to result in an exposure incident.  (8 CCR 5193(b)) 
 
A sharps injury is any injury caused by a sharp, including but not limited to cuts, abrasions or 
needlesticks.  (8 CCR 5193(b)) 
 
Work practice controls are controls that reduce the likelihood of exposure by defining the 
manner in which a task is performed.  (8 CCR 5193(b)) 
 
Engineering controls are controls, such as sharps disposal containers, needleless systems, and 
sharps with engineered sharps injury protection, that isolate or remove the bloodborne pathogens 
hazard from the workplace.  (8 CCR 5193(b)) 
 
Engineered sharps injury protection is a physical attribute built into a needle device or into a 
non-needle sharp which effectively reduces the risk of an exposure incident.  (8 CCR 5193(b)) 
 
Exposure Control Plan 
 
The district's exposure control plan shall contain at least the following components:  (8 CCR 
5193(c)) 
 
1.  A determination of which employees have occupational exposure to blood or other 
potentially infectious materials 
 







  The district's exposure determination shall be made without regard to the use of personal 
protective equipment and shall include a list of: 
 
a.  All job classifications in which all employees have occupational exposure 
 
b.  Job classifications in which some employees have occupational exposure 
 
c.  All tasks and procedures, or groups of closely related tasks and procedures, in which 
occupational exposure occurs and which are performed by employees listed in item #b above 
 
2.  The schedule and method of implementing: 
 
a.  Methods of compliance required by 8 CCR 5193(d), such as universal precautions, general 
and specific engineering and work practice controls, and personal protective equipment 
 
(cf. 4119.43/4219.43/4319.43 - Universal Precautions) 
 
b.  Hepatitis B vaccination 
 
c.  Bloodborne pathogen post-exposure evaluation and follow-up 
 
d.  Communication of hazards to employees, including labels, signs, information and training 
 
e.  Recordkeeping 
 
3.  The district's procedure for evaluating circumstances surrounding exposure incidents 
 
4.  An effective procedure for gathering information about each exposure incident involving a 
sharp, as required for the log of sharps injuries 
 
5.  An effective procedure for periodically determining the frequency of use of the types and 
brands of sharps involved in exposure incidents documented in the sharps injury log 
 
6.  An effective procedure for identifying currently available engineering controls and selecting 
such controls as appropriate for the procedures performed by employees in their work areas or 
departments 
 
7.  An effective procedure for documenting instances when a licensed healthcare professional 
directly involved in a patient's care determines, in the reasonable exercise of clinical judgment, 
that the use of an engineering control would jeopardize an individual's safety or the success of a 
medical, dental or nursing procedure involving the individual 
 
8.  An effective procedure for obtaining the active involvement of employees in reviewing and 
updating the exposure control plan with respect to the procedures performed by employees in 
their respective work areas or departments 
 







The exposure control plan shall be reviewed and updated at least annually and whenever 
necessary to:  (8 CCR 5193(c)) 
 
1.  Reflect new or modified tasks and procedures affecting occupational exposure 
 
2.  To the extent that sharps are used in the district, reflect progress in implementing the use of 
needleless systems and sharps with engineered sharps injury protection 
 
3.  Include new or revised employee positions with occupational exposure 
 
4.  Review and evaluate the exposure incidents which occurred since the previous update 
 
5.  Review and respond to information indicating that the exposure control plan is deficient in 
any area 
 
The district's exposure control plan shall be accessible to employees upon request.  (8 CCR 
3204(e)) 
 
Preventive Measures 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall use engineering and work practice controls to eliminate or 
minimize employee exposure, and shall regularly examine and update controls to ensure their 
effectiveness.  (8 CCR 5193(d)) 
 
Hepatitis B Vaccination 
 
The hepatitis B vaccination and vaccination series shall be made available at no cost to all 
employees who have occupational exposure.  The hepatitis B vaccination shall be made 
available after an employee with occupational exposure has received the required training and 
within 10 working days of initial assignment, unless the employee has previously received the 
complete hepatitis B vaccination series, or antibody testing has revealed that the employee is 
immune, or vaccination is contraindicated by medical reasons.  (8 CCR 5193(f)) 
 
Employees who decline to accept the vaccination shall sign the hepatitis B declination statement.  
(8 CCR 5193(f)) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may exempt designated first aid providers from the pre-exposure 
hepatitis B vaccine in accordance with 8 CCR 5193 (f). 
 
Information and Training 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all employees with occupational exposure 
participate in a training program containing the elements required by state regulations, during 
working hours and at no cost to the employee. This program shall be offered at the time of initial 
assignment to tasks where occupational exposure may take place, at least annually thereafter, and 
whenever a change of tasks or procedures affects the employee's exposure.  (8 CCR 5193(g)) 







 
Designated first aid providers shall receive training that includes the specifics of reporting 
first-aid incidents which involve blood or body fluids which are potentially infectious.  (8 CCR 
5193(g)) 
 
Reporting Incidents 
 
All exposure incidents shall be reported as soon as possible to the Superintendent or designee. 
 
Unvaccinated designated first aid providers must report any first aid incident involving the 
presence of blood or other potentially infectious material, regardless of whether an exposure 
incident occurred, by the end of the work shift. The full hepatitis B vaccination series shall be 
made available to such employees no later than 24 hours after the first aid incident.  (8 CCR 
5193(f)) 
 
Sharps Injury Log 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish and maintain a log recording each exposure 
incident involving a sharp. The exposure incident shall be recorded within 14 working days of 
the date the incident is reported to the district.  (8 CCR 5193(c)) 
 
The information recorded shall include the following, if known or reasonably available:  (8 
CCR 5193(c)) 
 
1.  Date and time of the exposure incident 
 
2.  Type and brand of sharp involved in the exposure incident 
 
3.  A description of the exposure incident, including: 
 
a.  Job classification of the exposed employee 
 
b.  Department or work area where the exposure incident occurred 
 
c.  The procedure that the exposed employee was performing at the time of the incident 
 
d.  How the incident occurred 
 
e.  The body part involved in the incident 
 
f.  If the sharp had engineered sharps injury protection, whether the protective mechanism was 
activated and whether the injury occurred before, during or after the protective mechanism was 
activated 
 
g.  If the sharp had no engineered sharps injury protection, the injured employee's opinion as to 
whether and how such a mechanism could have prevented the injury 







 
h.  The employee's opinion about whether any other engineering, administrative or work 
practice could have prevented the injury 
 
Post-Exposure Evaluation and Follow-up 
 
Following a report of an exposure incident, the Superintendent or designee shall immediately 
make available to the exposed employee, at no cost, a confidential medical evaluation, 
post-exposure evaluation and follow-up. The Superintendent or designee shall, at a minimum:  
(8 CCR 5193(f)) 
 
1.  Document the route(s) of exposure and the circumstances under which the exposure incident 
occurred 
 
2.  Identify and document the source individual, unless that identification is infeasible or 
prohibited by law 
 
3.  Provide for the collection and testing of the employee's blood for hepatitis B, hepatitis C and 
HIV serological status 
 
4.  Provide for post-exposure prophylaxis, when medically indicated, as recommended by the 
U.S. Public Health Service 
 
5.  Provide for counseling and evaluation of reported illnesses 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide the health care professional with a copy of 8 CCR 
5193; a description of the employee's duties as they relate to the exposure incident; 
documentation of the route(s) of exposure and circumstances under which exposure occurred; 
results of the source individual's blood testing, if available; and all medical records maintained 
by the district relevant to the appropriate treatment of the employee, including vaccination status.  
(8 CCR 5193(f)) 
 
The district shall maintain the confidentiality of the affected employee and the exposure source 
during all phases of the post-exposure evaluation.  (8 CCR 5193(f)) 
 
(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information) 
(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information) 
 
Records 
 
Upon an employee's initial employment and at least annually thereafter, the Superintendent or 
designee shall inform employees with occupational exposure of the existence, location and 
availability of related records; the person responsible for maintaining and providing access to 
records; and the employee's right of access to these records.  (8 CCR 3204) 
 
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 







(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
 
Medical records for each employee with occupational exposure shall be kept confidential and not 
disclosed or reported without the employee's written consent to any person within or outside the 
workplace except as required by law.  (8 CCR 5193(h)) 
 
Upon request by an employee, or a designated representative with the employee's written 
consent, the Superintendent or designee shall provide access to a record in a reasonable time, 
place and manner, no later than 15 days after the request is made.  (8 CCR 3204(e)) 
 
Records shall be maintained as follows:  (8 CCR 3204(d), 5193(h)) 
 
1.  Medical records shall be maintained for the duration of employment plus 30 years. 
 
2.  Training records shall be maintained for three years from the date of training.  
 
3.  The sharps injury log shall be maintained five years from the date the exposure incident 
occurred. 
 
4.  Exposure records shall be maintained for at least 30 years. 
 
5.  Each analysis using medical or exposure records shall be maintained for at least 30 years. 
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Administrative Regulation 
Child Abuse Prevention And Reporting 
 
AR 5141.4  
Students 
 
Definitions 
 
Child abuse or neglect includes the following:  (Penal Code 11165.5, 11165.6) 
 
1.  A physical injury inflicted by other than accidental means on a child by another person 
 
2.  Sexual abuse of a child as defined in Penal Code 11165.1 
 
3.  Neglect as defined in Penal Code 11165.2 
 
4.  Willful harming or injuring of a child or the endangering of the person or health of a child as 
defined in Penal Code 11165.3 
 
5.  Unlawful corporal punishment or injury as defined in Penal Code 11165.4 
 
Child abuse or neglect does not include: 
 
1.  A mutual affray between minors  (Penal Code 11165.6) 
 
2.  An injury caused by reasonable and necessary force used by a peace officer acting within the 
course and scope of his/her employment  (Penal Code 11165.6) (cf. 3515.3 - District Police/Security 
Department) 
 
3.  An injury resulting from the exercise by a teacher, vice principal, principal, or other 
certificated employee of the same degree of physical control over a student that a parent/guardian 
would be privileged to exercise, not exceeding the amount of physical control reasonably 
necessary to maintain order, protect property, protect the health and safety of students, or 
maintain proper and appropriate conditions conducive to learning (Education Code 44807) (cf. 5144 
- Discipline) 
 
4.  An injury caused by a school employee’s use of force that is reasonable and necessary to 
quell a disturbance threatening physical injury to persons or damage to property, to protect 
himself/herself, or to obtain weapons or other dangerous objects within the control of the student  
(Education Code 49001) 
 
5.  Physical pain or discomfort caused by athletic competition or other such recreational activity 
voluntarily engaged in by the student  (Education Code 49001) 
 
Mandated reporters include but are not limited to teachers; instructional aides; teacher's aides or 
assistants; classified employees; certificated student personnel employees; administrative officers 
or supervisors of child attendance; administrators and employees of a licensed day care facility; 
Head Start teachers; district police or security officers; and administrators, presenters, or 
counselors of a child abuse prevention program.  (Penal Code 11165.7) 
 







 
Reasonable suspicion means that it is objectively reasonable for a person to entertain a suspicion, 
based upon facts that could cause a reasonable person in a like position, drawing when 
appropriate on his/her training and experience, to suspect child abuse or neglect.  (Penal Code 
11166) 
 
Reportable Offenses 
 
A mandated reporter shall make a report using the procedures provided below whenever, in 
his/her professional capacity or within the scope of his/her employment, he/she has knowledge of 
or observes a child whom the mandated reporter knows or reasonably suspects has been the 
victim of child abuse or neglect.  (Penal Code 11166) 
 
Any mandated reporter who has knowledge of or who reasonably suspects that a child is 
suffering serious emotional damage or is at a substantial risk of suffering serious emotional 
damage based on evidence of severe anxiety, depression, withdrawal, or untoward aggressive 
behavior toward self or others, may make a report to the appropriate agency.  (Penal Code 
11166.05) 
 
Any person shall notify a peace officer if he/she reasonably believes that he/she has observed the 
commission of a murder, rape, or lewd or lascivious act by use of force, violence, duress, 
menace, or fear of immediate and unlawful bodily injury, where the victim is a child under age 
14.  (Penal Code 152.3, 288) 
 
Responsibility for Reporting 
 
The reporting duties of mandated reporters are individual and cannot be delegated to another 
person.  (Penal Code 11166) 
 
When two or more mandated reporters jointly have knowledge of a known or suspected instance 
of child abuse or neglect, and when there is agreement among them, the report may be made by a 
member of the team selected by mutual agreement and a single report may be made and signed 
by the selected member of the reporting team. Any member who has knowledge that the member 
designated to report has failed to do so shall thereafter make the report.  (Penal Code 11166) 
 
No supervisor or administrator shall impede or inhibit a mandated reporter from making a report.  
(Penal Code 11166) 
 
Any person not identified as a mandated reporter who has knowledge of or observes a child 
whom he/she knows or reasonably suspects has been a victim of child abuse or neglect may 
report the known or suspected instance of child abuse or neglect to the appropriate agency.  
(Penal Code 11166) 
 
Reporting Procedures 
 
1.  Initial Telephone Report 
 
Immediately or as soon as practicably possible after knowing or observing suspected child abuse 
or neglect, a mandated reporter shall make a report by telephone to any police department 
(excluding a school district police/security department), sheriff's department, county probation 
department if designated by the county to receive such reports, or county welfare department.  
(Penal Code 11166) 







 
Sierra County Sheriff 
530-289-3700 
 
When the telephone report is made, the mandated reporter shall note the name of the official 
contacted, the date and time contacted, and any instructions or advice received. 
 
2.  Written Report 
 
Within 36 hours of receiving the information concerning the incident, the mandated reporter 
shall prepare and send to the appropriate agency a written report which includes a completed 
Department of Justice form.  (Penal Code 11166, 11168) 
 
  Mandated reporters may obtain copies of the above form from either the district or the 
appropriate agency. 
 
Reports of suspected child abuse or neglect shall include, if known:  (Penal Code 11167) 
 
a.  The name, business address, and telephone number of the person making the report and the 
capacity that makes the person a mandated reporter 
 
b.  The child's name and address, present location and, where applicable, school, grade, and 
class 
 
c.  The names, addresses, and telephone numbers of the child's parents/guardians 
 
d.  The information that gave rise to the reasonable suspicion of child abuse or neglect and the 
source(s) of that information 
 
e.  The name, address, telephone number, and other relevant personal information about the 
person(s) who might have abused or neglected the child 
 
  The mandated reporter shall make a report even if some of this information is not known or is 
uncertain to him/her.  (Penal Code 11167) 
 
  Information relevant to the incident of child abuse or neglect may also be given to an 
investigator from an agency that is investigating the case.  (Penal Code 11167) 
 
3.  Internal Reporting 
 
Employees reporting child abuse or neglect to the appropriate agency are encouraged, but not 
required, to notify the principal or designee as soon as possible after the initial telephone report 
to the appropriate agency. When so notified, the principal shall inform the Superintendent or 
designee. 
 
The principal or designee so notified shall provide the mandated reporter with any assistance 
necessary to ensure that reporting procedures are carried out in accordance with law, Board 
policy and administrative regulation. At the mandated reporter's request, the principal may assist 
in completing and filing the necessary forms. 
 
The mandated reporter shall not be required to disclose his/her identity to the principal.  (Penal 
Code 11166) 







 
He/she may provide or mail a copy of the written report to the principal, Superintendent or 
designee without his/her signature or name. 
 
  Reporting the information to an employer, supervisor, school principal, school counselor, 
co-worker, or other person shall not be a substitute for making a mandated report to the 
appropriate agency.  (Penal Code 11166) 
 
Training 
 
Training of mandated reporters shall include child abuse identification and reporting.  (Penal 
Code 11165.7) 
 
Training shall also include guidance in the appropriate discipline of students, physical contact 
with students, and maintenance of ethical relationships with students to avoid actions that may be 
misinterpreted as child abuse. (cf. 4131 - Staff Development) (cf. 4231 - Staff Development) (cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
 (cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 
 
Victim Interviews 
 
Whenever a representative of an agency investigating suspected child abuse or neglect deems it 
necessary, a suspected victim may be interviewed during school hours, on school premises, 
concerning a report of suspected child abuse or neglect that occurred within the child's home or 
out-of-home care facility. The child shall be given the choice of being interviewed in private or 
in the presence of any adult school employee or volunteer aide selected by the child.  (Penal 
Code 11174.3) 
 
A staff member or volunteer aide selected by a child may decline to be present at the interview. 
If the selected person accepts, the principal or designee shall inform him/her of the following 
requirements:  (Penal Code 11174.3) 
 
1.  The purpose of the selected person's presence at the interview is to lend support to the child 
and enable him/her to be as comfortable as possible. 
 
2.  The selected person shall not participate in the interview. 
 
3.  The selected person shall not discuss the facts or circumstances of the case with the child. 
 
4.  The selected person is subject to the confidentiality requirements of the Child Abuse and 
Neglect Reporting Act, a violation of which is punishable as specified in Penal Code 11167.5. 
 
If a staff member agrees to be present, the interview shall be held at a time during school hours 
when it does not involve an expense to the school.  (Penal Code 11174.3) 
 
Release of Child to Peace Officer 
 
When a child is released to a peace officer and taken into custody as a victim of suspected child 
abuse or neglect, the Superintendent or designee and/or principal shall not notify the 
parent/guardian, but rather shall provide the peace officer with the address and telephone number 
of the child's parent/guardian. It is the responsibility of the peace officer or agent to notify the 
parent/guardian of the situation.  (Education Code 48906) 
 







Peace officers shall be asked to sign an appropriate release or acceptance of responsibility form. 
(cf. 5145.11 - Questioning and Apprehension) 
 
Parent/Guardian Complaints 
Upon request, the Superintendent or designee shall provide parents/guardians with procedures 
that 
describe how to report suspected child abuse occurring at a school site to appropriate agencies.  
For parents/guardians whose primary language is other than English, such procedures shall be in 
the primary language of the parent/guardian and, when communicating orally regarding those 
procedures, an interpreter shall be provided. 
 
To file a complaint against a district employee or other person suspected of child abuse or 
neglect at a school site, parents/guardians may file a report by telephone, in person or in writing 
with any appropriate agency identified above under “Reporting Procedures.” If a parent/guardian 
makes a complaint to any district employee, that employee shall notify the parent/guardian of 
procedures for filing a complaint with the appropriate agency.  The employee also is obligated 
pursuant to Penal Code 11166 to file a report himself/herself using the procedures described 
above for mandated reporters. (cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees) 
 
In addition, if the child is enrolled in special education, a separate complaint may be filed with 
the California Department of Education pursuant to 5 CCR 4650. (cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
 
Notifications 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide all new employees who are mandated reporters a 
statement that informs them that they are mandated reporters, of their reporting obligations under 
Penal Code 11166, and of their confidentiality rights under Penal Code 11167.  The district 
shall also provide these new employees with a copy of Penal Code 11165.7, 11166, and 11167. 
(Penal Code 11165.7, 11166.5) 
 
Before beginning employment, employees shall sign the statement indicating that they have 
knowledge of the reporting obligations under Penal Code 11166 and that they will comply with 
those provisions.  The signed statements shall be retained by the Superintendent or designee.  
(Penal Code 11166.5) (cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 


 
Employees who work with dependent adults shall be notified of legal responsibilities and 
reporting procedures pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code 15630-15637. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall also notify all employees that: 
 
1.  A mandated reporter who reports a known or suspected instance of child abuse or neglect 
shall not be held civilly or criminally liable for making a report and this immunity shall apply 
even if the mandated reporter acquired the knowledge or reasonable suspicion of child abuse or 
neglect outside of his/her professional capacity or outside the scope of his/her employment. Any 
other person making a report shall not incur civil or criminal liability unless it can be proven that 
he/she knowingly made a false report or made a report with reckless disregard of the truth or 
falsity of the report.  (Penal Code 11172) 
2.  If a mandated reporter fails to report an incident of known or reasonably suspected child 
abuse or neglect, he/she is guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by a fine and/or imprisonment.  
(Penal Code 11166) 
3.  No employee shall be subject to any sanction by the district for making a report.  (Penal 
Code 11166) 
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Exhibit 
Professional Standards 
 
E 4119.21  
Personnel 
 
 
CODE OF ETHICS OF THE EDUCATION PROFESSION 
 
Preamble 
 
The educator, believing in the worth and dignity of each human being, recognizes the supreme 
importance of the pursuit of truth, devotion to excellence, and the nurturing of democratic 
principles.  Essential to these goals is the protection of freedom to learn and to teach and the 
guarantee of equal educational opportunity for all.  The educator accepts the responsibility to 
adhere to the highest ethical standards. 
 
The educator recognizes the magnitude of the responsibility inherent in the teaching process.  
The desire for the respect and confidence of one's colleagues, of students, of parents, and of the 
members of the community provides the incentive to attain and maintain the highest possible 
degree of ethical conduct.  The Code of Ethics of the Education Profession indicates the 
aspiration of all educators and provides standards by which to judge conduct. 
 
Principle I.  Commitment to the Student 
 
The educator strives to help each student realize his/her potential as a worthy and effective 
member of society.  The educator therefore works to stimulate the spirit of inquiry, the 
acquisition of knowledge and understanding, and the thoughtful formulation of worthy goals. 
 
In fulfillment of the obligation to the student, the educator: 
 
1. Shall not unreasonably restrain the student from independent action in the pursuit of 
learning 
 
2. Shall not unreasonably deny the student access to varying points of view 
 
3. Shall not deliberately suppress or distort subject matter relevant to the student's progress 
 
4. Shall make reasonable effort to protect the student from conditions harmful to learning or 
to health and safety 
 
5. Shall not intentionally expose the student to embarrassment or disparagement 
 
6. Shall not on the basis of race, color, creed, gender, national origin, marital status, political 
or religious beliefs, family, social, or cultural background, or sexual orientation, unfairly: 
 
a. Exclude any student from participation in any program 
 
b. Deny benefits to any student 







 
c. Grant any advantage to any student 
 
7. Shall not use professional relationships with students for private advantage 
 
8. Shall not disclose information in the course of professional service unless disclosure 
serves a compelling professional purpose or is required by law 
 
Principle II.  Commitment to the Profession 
 
The education profession is vested by the public with a trust and responsibility requiring the 
highest ideals of professional service. 
 
In the belief that the quality of the services of the education profession directly influences the 
nation and its citizens, the educator shall exert every effort to raise professional standards, to 
promote a climate that encourages the exercise of professional judgment, to achieve conditions 
that attract persons worthy of the trust to careers in education, and to assist in preventing the 
practice of the profession by unqualified persons. 
 
In fulfillment of the obligation of the profession, the educator: 
 
1. Shall not in any application for a professional position deliberately make a false 
statement or fail to disclose a material fact related to competency and qualifications 
 
2. Shall not misrepresent his/her professional qualifications 
 
3. Shall not assist any entry into the profession of a person known to be unqualified in 
respect to character, education, or other relevant attribute 
 
4. Shall not knowingly make a false statement concerning the qualifications of a candidate 
for a professional position 
 
5. Shall not disclose information about colleagues obtained in the course of professional 
service unless disclosure serves a compelling professional purpose or is required by law 
 
6. Shall not knowingly make false or malicious statements about a colleague 
 
7. Shall not accept any gratuity, gift, or favor that might impair or appear to influence 
professional decisions or action 
 
 
 
Source:  National Education Association, 1975 
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Administrative Regulation 
Oath Or Affirmation 
 
AR 4112.3  
Personnel 
 
 
All district employees are declared by law to be disaster service workers and thus shall take the 
oath or affirmation required for disaster service workers before beginning employment with the 
district.  In the event of natural, manmade or war-caused emergencies which result in conditions 
of disaster or extreme peril to life, property and resources, all district employees are subject to 
disaster service activities as assigned to them by their supervisors or by law.  (Government 
Code 3100-3102) (cf. 3516 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness Plan) (cf. 9224 - Oath or Affirmation) 


 
Legally employed noncitizens shall be exempt from taking this oath.  (Government Code 3101) 
 
At the advice of legal counsel, the Superintendent or designee may exempt an employee from 
taking the oath if he/she raises a valid religious objection. 
 
The Superintendent, designee or other person authorized in Education Code 60 shall administer 
the oath or affirmation when a district employee is hired.  
 
In the case of intermittent, temporary, emergency or successive employments, the Superintendent 
or designee may determine that the oath shall be effective for all successive periods of 
employment which begin within one calendar year from the date that the oath was subscribed. 
(Government Code 3102) (cf. 4121 - Temporary/Substitute Personnel) 


 
The Superintendent or designee shall file the executed oath or affirmation within 30 days of the 
date on which it is taken and subscribed.  An employee’s oath or affirmation may be destroyed 
five years after the termination of employment. (Government Code 3105) 
 
Reimbursement of Expenses for Disaster Service Workers 
 
Whenever an employee seeks compensation or reimbursement of expenses as a disaster service 
worker, the Superintendent or designee shall ascertain and certify that the employee has taken 
the oath or affirmation. (Government Code 3107) 
 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE       
60  Persons authorized to administer and certify oaths 
44334  Oath or affirmation required for credential 
44354  Administration of oath required for credential 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
3100-3109  Oath or affirmation of allegiance 
CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 
Article 20, Section 3  Oath of office 
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Board Policy 
Drug And Alcohol-Free Workplace 
 
BP 4020  
Personnel 
 
 
The Board of Education believes that the maintenance of drug- and alcohol-free workplaces is 
essential to school and district operations. 
 
No employee shall unlawfully manufacture, distribute, dispense, possess, use or be under the 
influence of any alcoholic beverage, drug or controlled substance as defined in 21 USC 81 at any 
school district workplace.  These prohibitions apply before, during and after school hours.  A 
school district workplace is any place where school district work is performed, any 
school-owned or school-approved vehicle used to transport students to and from school or school 
activities; any off-school sites when accommodating a school-sponsored or school-approved 
activity or function where students are under district jurisdiction; or during any period of time 
when an employee is supervising students on behalf of the district or otherwise engaged in 
district business. (cf. 4112.41/4212.41/4312.41 - Employee Drug Testing) 
(cf. 4112.42/4212.42/4312.42 - Drug and Alcohol Testing for School Bus Drivers) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall notify employees of these prohibitions.   (Government 
Code 8355; 41 USC 702) 
 
An employee shall abide by the terms of this policy and notify the district, within five days, of 
any criminal drug or alcohol statute conviction which he/she receives for a violation occurring in 
the workplace. (41 USC 702) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall notify the appropriate federal granting or contracting 
agencies within 10 days after receiving notification, from an employee or otherwise, of any 
conviction for a violation occurring in the workplace.  (41 USC 701) 
 
The Board may not employ or retain in employment persons convicted of a controlled substance 
offense as defined in Education Code 44011.  If any such conviction is reversed and the person 
acquitted in a new trial or the charges dismissed, his/her employment is no longer prohibited.   
A plea or verdict of guilty, a finding of guilt by a court in a trial without a jury, or a conviction 
following a plea of nolo contendere shall be deemed to be a conviction. (Education Code 44836, 
45123) (cf. 4112 - Appointment and Conditions of Employment) (cf. 4212 - Appointment and Conditions of Employment) 
 
A classified employee may be reemployed after conviction of such an offense if the Board 
determines, from the evidence presented, that the person has been rehabilitated for at least five 
years.  (Education Code 45123) 
 
The Board may take appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including termination, or require 
the employee to satisfactorily participate in and complete a drug assistance or rehabilitation 
program approved by a federal, state or local health, law enforcement or other appropriate 
agency. 







 
(cf. 4117.4 - Dismissal) 
(cf. 4118 - Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish a drug- and alcohol-free awareness program to 
inform employees about:  (Government Code 8355) 
 
1.  The dangers of drug and alcohol abuse in the workplace 
 
2.  The district policy of maintaining drug- and alcohol-free workplaces 
 
3.  Any available drug and alcohol counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance 
programs 
(cf. 4159/4259/4359 - Employee Assistance Programs) 
 
4.  The penalties that may be imposed on employees for drug and alcohol abuse violations 
 
 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
44011  Controlled substance offense 
44425  Conviction of controlled substance offenses as grounds for revocation of credential 
44836  Employment of certificated persons convicted of controlled substance offenses 
44940  Compulsory leave of absence for certificated persons 
44940.5  Procedures when employees are placed on compulsory leave of absence 
45123  Employment after conviction of controlled substance offense 
45304  Compulsory leave of absence for classified persons 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
8350-8357  Drug-free workplace 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
7111-7117 Safe and Drug Free Schools and Communities Act 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 21 
812 Schedule of controlled substances 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 41 
701-707  Drug-Free Workplace Act 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 21 
1308.01-1308.49 Schedule of controlled substances 
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Board Policy 
Evaluation/Supervision 
 
BP 4115  
Personnel 
 
 
The Board of Education believes that regular and comprehensive evaluations can help 
instructional staff improve their teaching skills and raise students’ levels of achievement. 
Evaluations also serve to hold staff accountable for their performance. The Superintendent or 
designee shall evaluate the performance of certificated staff members in accordance with law, 
negotiated employee contracts and Board-adopted evaluation standards. 
(cf. 4141/4241 - Collective Bargaining Agreement) 
 
Objective standards from the National Board for Professional Teaching Standards and/or the 
California Standards for the Teaching Profession shall be reviewed and may be incorporated in 
district evaluation standards with the agreement of the exclusive representative of the certificated 
staff. (cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards) (cf. 4140/4240 - Bargaining Units) (cf. 4315.1 - Staff Evaluating Teachers) 


 
Evaluation procedures may include observation of teacher performance in the classroom. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that evaluation ratings have uniform meaning 
throughout the district. 
 
Evaluations shall be used to recognize the exemplary skills and accomplishments of staff and to 
identify areas needing improvement.  When areas needing improvement are identified, the 
Board expects employees to accept responsibility for improving their performance. The 
Superintendent or designee shall assist employees in improving their performance and may 
require participation in appropriate programs. Staff members are encouraged to take initiative to 
request assistance as necessary to promote effective teaching. (cf. 4131 - Staff Development) (cf. 4139 - Peer 
Assistance and Review) 
 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
33039  State guidelines for teacher evaluation procedures 
35171  Availability of rules and regulations for evaluation of performance 
44500-44508  Peer assistance and review program for teachers 
44660-44665 Evaluation and assessment of performance of certificated employees (the Stull Act) 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
3543.2  Scope of representation 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
6319  Highly qualified teachers 
7801  Definition of highly qualified teacher 
 
Management Resources: 
CTC PUBLICATIONS 
Standards for the Quality and Effectiveness for Beginning Teacher Support and Assessment Programs, 1997 
California Standards for the Teaching Profession, 1997 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
Cailifornia Department of Education:  http://www.CDE.ca.gov 
California Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http://www.ctc.ca.gov 
National Board for Professional Teaching Standards: http://www.nbpts.org 
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Exhibit 
Oath Or Affirmation 
 
E 4112.3  
Personnel 
 
 
I, ______________________________  , do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will support and 
defend the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of California 
against all enemies, foreign and domestic; that I will bear true faith and allegiance to the 
Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of California; that I take this 
obligation freely, without any mental reservation or purpose of evasion; and that I will well and 
faithfully discharge the duties upon which I am about to enter. 
 
I understand that as a public employee I am a disaster service worker pursuant to Government 
Code 3100 and 3102 and that I am required to take this oath before entering the duties of my 
employment.  In the event of natural, manmade or war-caused emergencies which result in 
conditions of disaster or extreme peril to life, property and resources, I am subject to disaster 
services activities assigned to me by my supervisor. 
 
 
 


______________________________________________ 
Signature 


 
 
 
Certified by: 
 


_______________________________________________ 
(Person who administers the oath) 
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Administrative Regulation 
Professional Standards 
 
AR 4119.21  
Personnel 
 
 
The Board of Education expects district employees to maintain the highest ethical standards, 
follow district policies and regulations, and abide by state and federal laws. Employee conduct 
should enhance the integrity of the district and advance the goals of the educational programs. 
Each employee should make a commitment to acquire the knowledge and skills necessary to 
fulfill his/her responsibilities and should focus on his/her contribution to the learning and 
achievement of district students. (cf. 0000 - Vision) (cf. 4112.2 - Certification) (cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) (cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
 
 
The Board encourages district employees to accept as guiding principles the professional 
standards and codes of ethics adopted by professional associations to which they may belong. 
(cf. 2111 - Superintendent Governance Standards) (cf. 9005 - Governance Standards) 
 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
80331-80338 Rules of conduct for professional educators 
 
Management Resources: 
CDE PUBLICATIONS 
California Professional Standards for Educational Leaders, 2001 
COUNCIL OF CHIEF STATE SCHOOL OFFICERS PUBLICATIONS 
Standards for School Leaders, 1996 
NATIONAL EDUCATION ASSOCIATION PUBLICATIONS 
Code of Ethics of the Education Profession, 1975 
WEB SITES 
CDE: http://www.cde.ca.gov 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http://www.ctc.ca.gov 
Association of California School Administrators: http://www.acsa.org 
California School Leadership Academy: http://www.csla.org 
Council of Chief State School Officers: http://www.ccsso.org 
California Teachers Association: http://www.cta.org 
California Federation of Teachers: http://www.cft.org 
California School Employees Association: http://www.csea.com 
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